NEWRY AND MOURNE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COMHAIRLE AN IÚIR AGUS MHÚRN

Minutes of Monthly Meeting of the Council held on Monday 2 April 2012 at 7.00pm in the Boardroom, District Council Offices, Monaghan Row, Newry.

In the Chair:-	Councillor C Casey
In Attendance:-	Councillor C Burns Councillor W Burns Councillor M Carr Councillor C Casey Councillor B Curran Councillor S Doran Councillor S Doran Councillor J Feehan Councillor F Feely Councillor A Flynn Councillor V Harte Councillor T Hearty Councillor D Hyland Councillor P Kearney Councillor J McArdle Councillor J McArdle Councillor J McArder Councillor J McCreesh Councillor P J McDonald Councillor P McGinn Councillor C McGreevy Councillor H McKee Councillor A Moffett Councillor T Murphy Councillor T Murphy Councillor S O'Hare Councillor J Patterson Councillor S Rogers Councillor M Ruane Councillor D Taylor
Officials in Attendance:-	Mr T McCall, Clerk & Chief Executive Mr E Curtis, Director of Administration Mr R Dowey, Director of Finance Mr J Farrell, Director of Environment, Health & Building Services Mr J McCorry, Director of Technical/Leisure Services Mr E McManus, Deputy Director of Technical/Leisure Services Mrs R Mackin, Assistant Director of Administration (Equality) Mrs C McKenna, Assistant Director of Administration (General Services) Mrs C McAteer, Committee Administrator
Apologies:-	Councillor G Donnelly

M/86/2012:- MINUTES

- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Hearty seconded by Councillor M Murphy that the Minutes of the Monthly Meeting of the Council held on Monday 5 March 2012 be adopted as a true and accurate record, same having been circulated, subject to Councillor Hyland being added to the list of those in attendance at the Meeting.
- M/87/2012:- CONGRATULATIONS (REF: M/23)
- Agreed: At the request of Mayor Casey that a letter of congratulations be sent to the Crossmaglen Rangers Team on winning the All Ireland Club Senior Football Championship Final.
- Agreed: At the request of Mayor Casey that a letter of congratulations be sent to St Paul's High School, Bessbrook on winning the All Ireland Colleges Senior B Football Championship Final.
- Agreed: At the request of Councillor Feely that a letter of congratulations be sent to Eithne Bell on being awarded Best Actress of the Newry Drama Festival for her role in the Newpoint production of "The Beauty Queen of Leenane."
- Agreed: At the request of Councillor McGinn that a letter of congratulations be sent to Oisin O'Callaghan on winning the All Ireland Athletics Title in Nenagh on Saturday 31 March 2012.
- Agreed: At the request of Councillor McAteer that a letter of congratulations be sent to the Abbey Basketball Team on winning the Under 16 All Ireland Title.
- M/88/2012:- PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AT KILLOWEN (REF: G/4/10/A)
- Agreed: At the request of Councillor M Murphy that Officials follow up with the Council's Solicitor, progress in relation to the Public Right of Way at Killowen and that a further follow up Meeting be arranged as a matter of urgency.

M/89/2012:- PAYMENT TO CLOUGHVALLEY STORES (REF: F/1)

- **Noted:** In response to a query from Councillor Hearty relating to the payment to Cloughvalley Stores, Mr McCall advised that the Council's Solicitor was currently making additional enquiries and would come back to a Council Meeting as soon as possible when full advices were available.
- **Noted:** In response to a query from Councillor Hyland Mr Dowey confirmed that the Council's internal systems and procedures had been changed and that additional checking procedures were in place to minimise any possibility of BACS errors happening in future.

M/90/2012:- NOTICE OF MOTION – HARRASSMENT OF REPUBLICAN ACTIVISTS (REF: M/2)

Noted: Councillor Hyland asked that it be noted that at the last Monthly Meeting he had brought forward a Notice of Motion in relation to ongoing harassment of Republican activists in the Newry area by the PSNI and it had been agreed that they should discuss an amendment with those he was representing and if acceptable to them he would raise this at a future Meeting of the Council. Councillor Hyland advised that the people he represented did not agree to the amendment which was recommending an investigation by people who were carrying out the harassment. He said he would raise the issue of ongoing harassment at every conceivable moment in the Council Chamber.

FINANCE SECTION

- M/91/2012:- TREASURER'S ADVICE SHEET (REF: F/1)
- Read: Treasurer's Advice Sheet in respect of payments for the month of March 2012 (A Run) in the sum of £1,264,931.86. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feely seconded by Councillor Feehan to approve the above payments.
- Read: Treasurer's Advice Sheet in respect of payments for the month of March 2012 (B Run) in the sum of £630,932.51. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feely seconded by Councillor Feehan to approve the above payments.

M/92/2012:- EXAMINATION OF ACCOUNTS – MANUAL PAYMENTS – MARCH 2012 (A RUN) & MARCH 2012 (B RUN) (REF: F/1)

- Read: Examination of Accounts in respect of manual payments for the month of March 2012 (A Run) in the sum of £81,684.78. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feely seconded by Councillor Feehan to approve the above payments.
- Read: Examination of Accounts in respect of manual payments for the month of March 2012 (B Run) in the sum of £48,999.98. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feely seconded by Councillor Feehan to approve the above payments.
- M/93/2012:- REVENUE PAYMENTS IMPREST ACCOUNT - MARCH 2012 (REF: F/1)
- Read: Analysis of Revenue payments made through the Imprest Account for the month of March 2012. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feely seconded by Councillor Feehan to approve the above Financial Report.
- M/94/2012:- FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - THURSDAY 22 MARCH 2012 (REF: F/1/1)
- Read: Report of Finance Committee Meeting held on Thursday 22 March 2012. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor W Burns seconded by Councillor McArdle to approve the above Report and recommendations and to note the following: -
 - Minute F/66/2012 Land at Carginagh Road, Kilkeel

 Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor W Burns seconded by Councillor McKee to approve the amended Report of a Mournes DEA Meeting held on 28 February 2012 as circulated at the April Monthly Meeting.
 - Minute F/69/2012 Land at Green Road, Bessbrook Proposed transfer to NIHE – Noted that Clanmill Housing do not now require a Licence Agreement.

 Minute F/76/2012 – Licence of Café facilities at Sean Hollywood Arts Centre – Recommendation (A) should read "the Council renew the Lease Agreement with Pat and Patricia Courtney in respect of Café facilities at Sean Hollywood Arts Centre, Newry for a 3 year period."

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH & BUILDING SERVICES SECTION

M/95/2012:- MONTHLY REPORT FROM MR J FARRELL - APRIL 2012 (REF: PH/2)

- **Read:** Monthly Report from Mr J Farrell, Director of Environment, Health & Building Services for April 2012.
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Moffett seconded by Councillor McGreevy to approve the above Report and recommendations.
- Noted: The following Environmental Health issues were also raised: -
 - Concerns expressed by Councillor Hearty regarding the ongoing costs associated with the removal of residue of laundered fuel and in particular the need to take urgent action to have the site on private land off Concession Road, Crossmaglen cleaned up.
 - Mr Farrell to investigate a previous Report from Councillor Reilly regarding a very serious rat infestation beside a river in an urban area.
 - Further updates to be provided in next month's Report on the Dangerous Dogs and Licensing and Litter Control Order including details of increased penalties and concessions – Councillor Patterson asked that an information campaign be undertaken to ensure the public are aware of the implications of the Dangerous Dogs Legislation.
 - Mr Farrell to discuss with Councillor Feely a Report on the water quality of the Clanrye River.
 - An update given to Councillor Hyland on information which the Environmental Health Department can give to people who are having problems with bee's nests in their property.

TECHNICAL/LEISURE SERVICES SECTION

- M/96/2012:-
- (A) TECHNICAL/LEISURE SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING – WEDNESDAY 14 MARCH 2012
- (B) DIRECTOR'S REPORT TO T/L SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING – MARCH 2012 (REF: MT/2/5)
- **Read:** Report of Technical/Leisure Services Committee Meeting held on Wednesday 14 March 2012 including Director's Report to the Technical/Leisure Services Committee Meeting for March 2012. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feehan seconded by Councillor Rogers to approve the above Report's subject to the following amendments: -
 - Councillor Carr to be added to the list of those in attendance at the T/L Services Meeting.
 - **T/L 033/2012 –** tree Ballyholland To be amended to read tree Burren (damaged tree at Burren)
 - T/L 030/2021 Proposed Housing Development, Jerrettspass (towpath issues) – agreed not to approve this recommendation but that a further urgent Fews Councillors Site Meeting be held with relevant Officials and the Agent/Developer to discuss a request from the Developer for canal towpath access to the proposed Development (proposed by Councillor Moffett seconded by Councillor Taylor)
- **Noted:** The following Technical/Leisure Services issues were also raised: -
 - Councillor McKee agreed that Officials prepare a Report detailing possible options, with costings, including the income which would need to be generated, to facilitate the opening of leisure facilities during Bank Holidays. This Report to be taken back to the Technical/Leisure Services Committee.
 - Councillor Patterson agreed that relevant Officials investigate if the Public Conveniences in Warrenpoint Square were open after 6pm on the day after St Patrick's Day as he had received complaints that they were not open.

ROADS/WATER/NIE MATTERS

M/97/2012:- FEWS MULTI AGENCY MEETING – WEDNESDAY 7 MARCH 2012 (REF: M/43/1)

- Read: Report of Fews Multi Agency Meeting held on Wednesday 7 March 2012. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feehan seconded by Councillor Hyland to approve the above Report and recommendations.

M/98/2012:- CONDITION OF CULLENTRAGH ROAD, LISSUMMON, NEWRY (REF: M/43/1)

- Read: Report of Fews Councillors Site Meeting held on Wednesday 14 March 2012 re: condition of Cullentragh Road, Lissummon, Newry. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feehan seconded by Councillor Hyland to approve the above Report and recommendations.
- M/99/2012:- PARKING ISSUES AT CHAPEL ROAD, CAMLOUGH (REF: M/43/1)
- Read: Report of Fews Councillors Site Meeting held on Wednesday 14 March 2012 re: parking issues at Chapel Road, Camlough. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feehan seconded by Councillor Hyland to approve the above Report and recommendations.
- M/100/2012:- PROPOSED ETAPE EVENT (REF: R/S 99/1)
- Read: Report of Mournes Area Councillors Meeting held on Wednesday 21 March 2012 to discuss proposed ETAPE Event in the Mournes. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor W Burns seconded by Councillor McKee to approve the above Report.

M/101/2012:- NEWRY TOWN DEA MEETING - MONDAY 27 FEBRUARY 2012 (REF: M/43/3)

Read: Report of Newry Town District Electoral Area Meeting held on Monday 27 February 2012. *(Copy circulated)*

Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feely seconded by Councillor Harte to approve the above Report and recommendations.

- M/102/2012:- SLIEVE GULLION COUNCILLORS MULTI AGENCY MEETING – TUESDAY 6 MARCH 2012 (REF: M/43/3)
- Read: Report of Slieve Gullion Councillors Multi Agency Meeting held on Tuesday 6 March 2012. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor C Burns seconded by Councillor Flynn to approve the above Report and recommendations.

CORPORATE/DEMOCRATIC/ADMINISTRATION SECTION

- M/103/2012:- HEALTH SERVICE WORKING GROUP MEETING - THURSDAY 15 MARCH 2012 (REF: G/13/19)
- Read: Report of Health Service Working Group Meeting held on Thursday 15 March 2012. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor O'Hare seconded by Councillor Rogers to approve the above Report and recommendations.
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Reilly seconded by Councillor Rogers that Ms A Rennick, Investing for Health Officer investigate if a visit could be organised for Health Service Members to travel to Lanarkshire Council to see first hand the systems they have in place which means that children/adults presenting with Autism are diagnosed very quickly and receive the appropriate treatment.
- M/104/2012:- LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOUNDARY CHANGES - SEAVIEW WARD, WARRENPOINT (REF: G/12/3)
- Read:Report of Meeting with Minister Attwood held on Monday 26March 2012 re: Local Government Boundary Changes –
Seaview Ward, Warrenpoint. (Copy circulated)

- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Carr seconded by Councillor McGreevy to approve the above Report and recommendations.
- **Noted:** Councillor Carr asked that it be recorded that he was appreciative of all those who attended the Meeting including the Chief Executive of the Council and senior Officials from Down District Council.
- Agreed: At the request of Councillor Moffett that an update be sought from Minister Attwood re: a buffer zone at Cloughanramer Road, Newry.

M/105/2012:- STAFF & POLICY/EQUALITY COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY 20 MARCH 2012 (REF: M/4/3)

- Read: Report of Staff & Policy/Equality Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 20 March 2012. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor McAteer seconded by Councillor Hyland to approve the above Report and recommendations, subject to Councillor McAteer being added to the list of those in attendance at the Meeting.
- M/106/2012:- SPECIAL STAFF & POLICY/EQUALITY COMMITTEE MEETING – TUESDAY 27 MARCH 2012 (REF: M/4/3)
- **Read:** Report of Special Staff & Policy/Equality Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 27 March 2012 re: Business Case for the retention of a Change/Business Development Manager. *(Copy circulated)*
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feehan seconded by Councillor Hyland to approve the above Report and recommendations.
- M/107/2012:- SPECIAL STAFF & POLICY/EQUALITY COMMITTEE MEETING – 2012 COMMEMORATION EVENTS (REF: M/4/3)
- Read: Report of Special Staff & Policy/Equality Committee Meeting held on Thursday 29 March 2012. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feehan seconded by Councillor Taylor to approve the above Report and recommendations.
- **Noted:** Comments made by Councillor Hyland about the excessive number of Council Officials in attendance at this Meeting and his request that this matter be looked at.

M/108/2012:- SEALING DOCUMENTS (REF: M/65)

- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Feehan seconded by Councillor Taylor that the following documents be signed and sealed by the Mayor and Chief Executive on behalf of the Council: -
 - Mix Dry Recyclables (MDR) Contract with REGEN
 - Licence Agreement Use of part of Conway Park Play Area to Mr Gallogly
 - Licence Agreement St Joseph's High School Access to Canal Bank.

M/109/2012:- NEWRY AND MOURNE PCSP – THURSDAY 29 MARCH 2012 (REF: SB/16/8/A)

- Read: Report of Meeting of Elected Members to the Newry and Mourne PCSP held on Thursday 29 March 2012. (Copy circulated)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor W Burns seconded by Councillor Feehan to approve the above Report and recommendations.

M/110/2012:- PRIDE FESTIVAL WEEKEND OF ACTIVITIES IN NEWRY CITY (REF: M/51/180)

- **Read:** Letter dated 30 March 2012 from Newry Rainbow Community advising they wished to deliver a PRIDE Festival Weekend of activities in Newry City incorporating a PRIDE Parade, outdoor entertainment and a Gala Concert in September 2012. They asked if the Council would provide Newry Rainbow Community with a letter of support endorsing a proposed PRIDE in Newry Festival and agreeing in principle that McClelland Park and the adjoining Council owned land can be used as a venue for the post parade afternoon of outdoor family entertainment and Gala Concert.
- Agreed: That the Council provide a letter of support in relation to an application for funding to the Lottery Awards For All Programme from Newry Rainbow Community for a proposed PRIDE Festival Weekend of activities in Newry City in September 2012.

Agreed: In principle to grant Newry Rainbow Club use of McClelland Park and the adjoining Council owned land for the post parade afternoon of outdoor family entertainment and Gala Concert subject to the Newry Rainbow Community consulting with the traders in the area regarding the proposed arrangements for the weekend.

CHAIRMAN'S BUSINESS

M/111/2012:- CHAIRMAN'S BUSINESS (REF: M/1)

Members then raised the following issues under Chairman's business: -

- Agreed: At the request of Councillor Moffett that a Fews Councillors Meeting be convened to discuss the possibility of the Council acquiring an old Tram Station at the end of the Tram Line in Bessbrook with a view to turning the property into a Tourism Museum to promote the heritage of Bessbrook. Councillor Moffett referred to the great work recently undertaken by Catherine Murphy, Rights of Way Officer in securing funding which facilitated works to the Right of Way at Millvale and asked that a further extension of the Right of Way along the Tram Line be explored. (*Ref: R/S 169*)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Moffett seconded by Councillor Feehan that Officials convene a Meeting with Fews and all interested Councillors and Representatives from the National Trust to explore the potential of having a Camping/Caravan Park in Derramore Estate. (*Ref: R/S 169*)
- Agreed: At the request of Councillor Taylor that a Fews Councillors Meeting be convened with Representatives from Invest NI re: zoning of land at Cloughanramer Road, Newry. (*Ref: M/4/2*)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor McGreevy seconded by Councillor Rogers that Councillor Carr be authorised to attend the Royal National Institute for the Blind Gala Dinner and for the cost of his attendance be taken from his individual Councillor's budget. (*Ref: M/28*)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Taylor seconded by Councillor McGreevy to write to the relevant Agencies who have a role looking after the rivers in Northern Ireland and seek a Meeting with them to agree if any action can be taken to deal with the condition of the Clanrye River on an ongoing basis, particularly the main focal area in front of Newry Town Hall. (*Ref: G/1/7*)

- Agreed: At the request of Councillor Feely to write to the PSNI advising that complaints had been received that heavy vehicles over 7 tonne were using Canal Street, Newry on a daily basis and asking the PSNI to actively enforce the weight restriction on this narrow busy street. (*Ref: SB/16*)
- Agreed: On the proposal of Councillor Curran seconded by Councillor Patterson that relevant Council Officials investigate the potential for opening the Right of Way at the side of Newry Arts Centre/Town Hall to Needham Bridge and that a Report be taken back to the April Technical/Leisure Services Committee Meeting. (*Ref: G/4/10*)

M/112/2012:- RESIGNATION OF COUNCILLOR SEAN ROGERS (REF: M/1)

Councillor Rogers said he wished to tender his resignation as a Councillor with effect from Thursday 5 April 2012. He said he had enjoyed working with each and everyone of the Councillors and thanked Councillors, both past and present for all their help and assistance to him. He said he had really enjoyed working with Councillors, particularly his colleagues in the Mournes area and hoped that he had contributed to bridge building in the community.

Councillor Rogers also thanked his SDLP colleagues for their help and support; Mr McCall, Chief Executive; the Management Team and Council staff and referred in particular to the Committee Administrators whom he said were always willing to help and assist.

Councillor Rogers pledged that he would continue to support and keep Newry and Mourne on the map in his role as an MLA and he took the opportunity to wish his successor, Mr Brian Quinn all the very best in his new role. He also thanked the Press for their support and assistance.

Councillor Carr said he would like to wish Sean every good luck in his future career. He said Sean had been an excellent leader of the SDLP grouping within the Council and was a hard working man of great integrity and honesty. He said he had built bridges during his time as a Councillor and he would be missed by the SDLP grouping.

Councillor Hearty wished Councillor Rogers all the best in the Assembly. He said he had always found Sean to be a very fair and honest man and he had played a great role as a Councillor and had been a great attendee at SOAR Meetings.

Councillor McGreevy echoed the comments made by Councillor Carr and said since he had been elected as a Councillor, Sean had looked after and encouraged him and he wished him all the best in his role as MLA for South Down.

Councillor William Burns also asked to be associated with all the previous remarks and said he had enjoyed working with Sean. He said Sean was a

Councillor who represented a rural area and he understood the issues and needs of rural people.

Councillor Patterson also extended his best wishes to Sean and said he had always found him to be very likeable and approachable. He said he was great listener and this was very important in a politician and he wished him well in his future role.

Councillor McKee said when he had been elected as a Councillor he had found a friend in Sean Rogers. He said Sean was a good man and he wished him well in his future. He had attended all Meetings in the Mournes area and was very interested in the Mournes Young Forum.

Councillor Moffett also wished Sean well in his future role in the Assembly. He said Sean was a very decent fella and he hoped he enjoyed his new career in Stormont. He welcomed Brian Quinn as the new Councillor for the Mournes area.

Councillor Reilly said he was sad to see Sean going as he was an excellent person, very thoughtful and a man of great intellect. He said he had great management ability and he would do well in the Assembly. He also welcomed Brian as the new Mournes area Councillor.

Councillor O'Hare said he had known Sean Rogers for a very long time and had always found him to be a gentleman. He said Stormont needed MLA's like Sean and he wished him all the best in his new career. He also welcomed Brian as a new Councillor.

Councillor McAteer asked to be associated with the remarks and said Sean had represented all the people, particularly in the Mournes area to the very best of his ability. He said it was a mark of the man that he had been able to build great relationships with all sectors of the community. He also welcomed Brian to the Council.

Councillor Feehan concurred with the comments made and wished Sean good luck in Stormont. He said he had been a fantastic asset to the SDLP within the Council and the Assembly's gain would be Newry and Mourne's loss.

Councillor Feely congratulated Sean and wished him well in the future. He said he had added a new dimension to the SDLP and he had found him to be an exceptionally able man. He said Newry and Mourne would now have a friend and a supporter in Stormont.

Councillor Hyland said he had only been a Councillor for 10 months but he echoed all the sentiments expressed by previous speakers. He said Councillor Rogers was a very talented politician and he wished him all the best.

Mr McCall, Chief Executive wished Sean all the best for the future. He said during his time as a Councillor Sean had made a very significant contribution to the work of the Council. He was a man of the highest integrity, of great intellect and organisational ability and his leaving would be a loss for the Council. He said Councillor Rogers as an MLA would have more influence on behalf of the Newry and Mourne area in the Assembly.

Mr McCall said he would like to thank Councillor Rogers for the kind words offered about Council staff and said Council staff had always found him to be a pleasure to work with.

Mr McCall also welcomed Brian Quinn as the new Mournes area Councillor and said he looked forward to working with him.

There being no further business the Meeting ended at 8.45pm.

For consideration at the Monthly Meeting of the Council to be held on Tuesday 8 May 2012.

Signed: _____

Chief Executive

COMHAIRLE AN IÚIR AGUS MHÚRN

NEWRY AND MOURNE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PURPOSE OF MEETING:

Monthly Meeting

VENUE: Boardroom

DATE:

2 April 2012

Name of Coun	cillor	Time of Arrival	Time of Leaving	Meeting Duration	Travel Time To/Fro m Home	Mileage	Same Day Meeting	Total Time	Amount Payable
Burns C	58	7.10	8.45						
Burns W J	2	7.00	8.45						
Carr M	52	7.00	8.45						
Casey C	54	7.00	8.45						
Curran B	6	7.00	8.45						
Donnelly G		Apology							
Doran S		7.00	8.45						
Feehan J W	49	7.00	8.45						
Feely F	8	7.00	8.45						
Flynn A		7.00	8.45						
Harte V		7.00	8.45						
Hearty T	59	7.00	8.45						
Hyland D		7.00	8.45						
P Kearney		7.00	8.45						
McArdle J	55	7.00	8.45						
McAteer D		7.00	8.45						
McCreesh J P	44	7.00	8.45						
McDonald PJ	35	7.00	8.45						
McGinn P	56	7.00	7.30						
McGreevy C		7.00	8.45						
McKee H		7.00	8.45						
Moffett A	12	7.00	8.45						
Murphy M	47	7.00	8.45						
Murphy T		7.00	8.45						
O'Hare S	37	7.00	8.45						
Patterson J	38	7.00	7.45						
Reilly H	26	7.00	8.45						
Rogers S		7.00	8.45						
Ruane M	53	7.00	8.45		1				
Taylor D		7.00	8.45						

Officials in attendance: Time of Arrival:

E Curtis

Time of Leaving:

E McManus

C McKenna

T McCall

R Mackin C McAteer

R Dowey

J McCorry J Farrell

Signed: Collette McAteer

Date: 2 April 2012